
 
 

City of Baldwin City 
PO Box 68 

Baldwin City, Kansas 66006 
Council Meeting Agenda 

 

Baldwin City Public Library  
800 7th Street  
Baldwin City, KS 66006 

TUESDAY 
January 3, 2017  

7:00 PM 

 
 

 

 
A.  Call to Order- Mayor Marilyn Pearse  
 
B.  Consent Agenda 

1. Consider the Draft Minutes of the 12/19/2016 Regular Meeting 
 
C.  Public Comment: 
Members of the public are welcome to comment on items relating to City business not listed on this 
Agenda. Please stand and wait to be recognized by the Mayor. As a general practice, the comments may 
or may not be acted upon by the Council during the meeting, or Council may refer the items to staff for 
follow up. 
If you wish to comment on an item listed on the Agenda, a  sign-up sheet  is provided for you to sign in and 
provide your address. You will be called on when the Agenda item of interest is under discussion by the 
Council. 
 
D.   Special Reports or Presentations 
 
E.   Old Business 

1. Resolution 2017-01, Building Permit discount 2017 
 
F.   New Business 

1. Ordinance 1358, Zoning text amendments 
  
G.  Committee and/or Commission Reports 

1. Budget and Finance/Kathy Gerstner, David Simmons 
2. Community Development Committee/Steve Bauer, Tony Brown 
3. Public Health and Safety Committee/David Simmons, Kathy Gerstner 
4. Public Works Committee/Christi Darnell, Steve Bauer 
5. Utilities Committee/ Tony Brown, Christi Darnell  

 



 
 

City of Baldwin City 
PO Box 68 

Baldwin City, Kansas 66006 
Council Meeting Agenda 

 

Baldwin City Public Library  
800 7th Street  
Baldwin City, KS 66006 

TUESDAY 
January 3, 2017  

7:00 PM 

 
 

 

H.  City Administrator and Staff comments 
1. Brad Smith - buy local policy 
2. Financial Reports 

 
I.   Council & Mayor Comments 
 
J.   Executive Session 
 
K.  Adjourn 

 
 
 



  City of Baldwin City	
Minutes from the December 19, 2016	

 Regular Council Meeting	
 	
The Baldwin City Council met in Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin City Public 	
Library, 800 7th Street, with Mayor Marilyn Pearse presiding.	

Present were Council Members: Kathy Gerstner, Tony Brown, Steve Bauer, Christi Darnell, Glenn 
Rodden-City Administrator, Laura Hartman-City Clerk. Also attending were Brad Smith, Greg Neis and 
City Attorney, Matt Hoy. David Simmons was absent. 

	

A. Call to Order:  

Mayor Pearse called the regular council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
B. Consent Agenda:  

Christi Darnell moved and Kathy Gerstner seconded to approve the consent agenda. Motion carried with a 
vote of 4 yes and 0 no. 

C. Public Comment: Casey Simoneau, 417 Washington. Casey spoke about building permits and 
keeping those half-prices. Steve Bauer said he supported keeping the permits as they are and asked if 
council could have discussion. Mayor Pearse asked if there was a Resolution for this for 2016.  Laura was 
able to find in the minutes of December 2015 that Council had approved a Resolution. Council will 
consider a Resolution at the next regular meeting in January. 
David Simmons arrived at 7:09 p.m. 

Josh Ediger, 1621 North First Street, asked if there was any information on 1st street issue. Glenn 
confirmed that discussion has happened with the City staff, County and Township.  The Mayor assured 
Josh that this will not be ignored.        	

D. Special Reports or Presentations- Hank Booth gave an update on the Baldwin City Economic 
Development Corporation with a power point presentation. Dave Hill spoke about building in Baldwin 
City and half-price building permits. Dave said there are about 30 lots available but only 7 or 8 buildable. 
Dave continued reporting about his discussion with two builders and the recommendations for housing 
development proposed by the EDC. 	
 

E. Old Business: Council had discussed Ordinance 1358, which was a revision to 2-503.  David 
Simmons moved and Tony Brown seconded to approve Ordinance 1358, revision to 2-503. Motion 
carried with a vote of 5 ayes and 0 nays. Tony Brown, aye; Kathy Gerstner, aye; David Simmons, 
aye; Christi Darnell, aye, Steve Bauer, aye. 

 

F. New Business – Glenn explained the Investment Management Policy and what it means. It was an 
over sight from previous council, so thought we should get this policy in place to help improve our 
bond rating. Brad added this is a policy that was in the works and is now ready for Council action.  

Kathy Gerstner moved and Christi Darnell seconded to approve Resolution 2016-23, Investment 
Management Policy. Motion carried with a vote of 5 yes and 0 no.   
 
 
	



G. Committee Reports: 
Budget and Finance- Kathy Gerstner – Kathy said the committee will meet in January.	
Community Development Committee- Will meet January 18, 2016.	
Public Health and Safety Committee- David reported the committee met in November to discuss mobile 
home parks. The committee will meet again, January 19, 2017, 4:00 p.m. at City Hall. Christi thanked 
public works for the great work on the streets.	
Public Works Committee- Christi said the committee has not met, but there is an update on the utility 
building facility. Bill Winegar gave the update. 	
Utilities Committee- Tony Brown – Committee will meet in January to discuss rates and utility billing 
and net metering policy. 
	
H. City Administrator and Staff Comments – Chris Croucher spoke about dangerous meters and stated 
there are 3 customers that had letters delivered. Two of those are making arrangements and the other one 
has not responded, therefore were shut off for 8 hours.  That customer had it fixed the next day.  The next 
group are up in July.  They all have permits to have the work completed by July. Mayor said she was 
pleased this is being taken care of and thanked the crews for their hard work. 
  
       Terry Baker said he was re-elected to Fire Chief for 2018. Terry said Baker donated a house to train 
in. Terry said the turkeys and hams that were given to employees by the City were donated to the food 
pantry.  A Tender request has been sent to Matt to review. A Tender agreement is a county-wide 
agreement. Terry said six new firefighters are coming on board. Testing and training will begin in 
February. Once all staff have the EMR or above, the county will pay for medical calls and the City will no 
longer pay those calls, only fire calls.  
 
I. Council & Mayor Comments –	
Mayor Pearse appointed Steve Hitchcock to the MPO Bicycle Advisory Committee.  
	
J. Executive Session – none at this time	
	
K. Adjourn  
Kathy Gerstner moved and Christi Darnell seconded to adjourn the regular meeting.   Motion carried with 
a vote of 5 yes and 0 no. Time 8:10 p.m.	

	

Approved by the governing board on ___________________________, 2016.               	
	
Attest:	
        	
______________________________                            	
Laura E. Hartman, City Clerk	



Resolution 2017-01	

	
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING AN INCENTIVE PROGRAM FOR NEW RESIDENTIAL 
CONSTRUCTION, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2017. 	
	
WHEREAS, new residential construction is a significant means of attracting new residents to 
Baldwin City, infilling residential developments, and creating work opportunities for Baldwin 
City companies; and 	
	
WHEREAS, while there is some evidence that residential construction is increasing, that 
Baldwin City intends to remain competitive and this Resolution is intended to continue to 
encourage residential development,	
 	
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the City of Baldwin City, 
Kansas; 	
	
Section 1. Development fees for new residential construction, including building permit fees, all 
inspections fees, water system connection fees, sewer system connection fees, sewer tap 
inspection, electric service installation, and park improvement fees, shall be reduced by half for 
the calendar year 2017.	
 	
Section 2. The calculation of all fees shall be calculated per normal guidelines, and when a final 
fee is determined, such fee shall be divided in half and all monies received shall be appointed 
appropriately to the relative funds.	
 	
Section 3. For three residential permits issued to one builder, all costs associated with the fourth 
permit will be waived.	
 	
Section 4. The incentive to waive all fees for the fourth residential permit is only valid one time 
during the calendar year.	
 	
Section 5. This action is intended to be temporary in nature, done in the interest of encouraging 
new residential construction in 2017, and all fees shall return to normal as of January 1, 2018.	
 	
ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas on 
______________________ of _____________, __________.	
	
 	
APPROVED: 	
____________________________ 	
Marilyn Pearse, Mayor	
	
 	
ATTEST: 	
________________________________ 	
Laura Hartman, City Clerk 	



ORDINANCE NO.  1358  
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING ORDINANCE #1247 OF THE CITY OF 
BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS AND AS SET FORTH IN CHAPTER 16 OF THE 
MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS, BY AMENDING 
SECTIONS 12-102 (17) AND 26-108 (1) (C) CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS, 
DOUGLAS COUNTY, KANSAS 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS, THAT: 
 
 
SECTION 1 
 
Zoning Ordinance #1247 of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas, and as set forth in Chapter 16 of 
the Municipal Code of the City of Baldwin City, Kansas be and the same is hereby amended as 
follows: 
 
Section 12-102 (17) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following text: 
 

“All other commercial or retail stores and activities not otherwise prohibited or restricted 
by these Regulations, including but not limited to the following:  Antique shop; 
Appliance store and/or repair shops; Art schools, gallery or museum; Building materials 
sales; Car wash; Catering establishment; Clothing and apparel store; Curio or gift shop; 
Department store; Drinking establishment; Dry goods store; Dyeing and cleaning works; 
Furniture store; General service and repair establishment; Grocery store or supermarket; 
Hardware store; Lumber yard; Meat market, including processing facilities; Motor 
vehicle service and/or repair; Painting and/or decorating shop; Parking lots operated as a 
business; Plumbing and heating shop; Radio and television sales and/or service; Sewing 
machines sales, service and/or instruction; Sporting goods sales; Taverns; Tire sales and 
service including vulcanizing, but not manufacture; Toy store; Variety store” 

 
Section 26-108 (1) (c) is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following text: 
 
 “No accessory building or use shall occupy a required front yard (except basketball goals, 

flag poles and fences as permitted).  The ground floor area of all accessory buildings shall 
not exceed 1,200 square feet or the residence footprint, whichever is greater. No detached 
structure shall exceed the height of the residence, unless approved by a conditional use 
permit. ” 

 
 
SECTION 23 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the Governing Body of the City of Baldwin City on this 
_____ day of _______________, 2017 
 
 
APPROVED: 



 
 
 
___________________________ 
Marilyn Pearse, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Laura Hartman, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  ____________________________ 
                                    Matt Hoy, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Zoning Text Amendments  Page 1 
	

	

	

To:  Planning Commission 
From:  Ed Courton, Community Development Director 
Date:  December 7, 2016 
Re:  Zoning Text Amendments  
 
At November’s meeting, the Commission requested staff to advertise for a new zoning text amendment to 
reduce the interior lot front yard setback from the existing 30-foot to an unspecified distance.  Staff placed 
a generic legal ad in the paper for an interior front yard setback reduction from 30 to 20 foot.  Staff is also 
bringing back Section 26-108 (1) (c) due to staff not removing the distance provision of three (3) foot, as it 
is conflict with Section 25-103 (2) (b), which allows accessory structures up to five feet.  Five feet is 
necessary to comply with building and fire code standards without additional enhanced materials required. 
Staff felt it best to bring it back to the Commission to make sure the Commission is aware of it and for the 
Commission to support removing this section of code.  Since it was previously advertised and voted on at 
the last meeting, no need for further noticing is required.     
 
Staff has provided an analysis of the three (3) proposed zoning text amendments below: 
 
Amendment #1 
Reconsideration of Section 26-108 (1) (C): 
 

Existing Section 26-108 (1) (c) listed below: 
 

 
 
The modified language is as follows:  
 
“No accessory building or use shall occupy a required front yard (except basketball goals, flag poles and 
fence as permitted) or shall be placed closer than 3 feet to a side or rear lot line. The ground floor area of 
all accessory buildings shall not exceed 1,200 square feet or the residence footprint, whichever is greater. 
No detached structure shall exceed the height of the residence, unless approved by a conditional use 
permit.” 
 
Amendment #2: 
 
I attached the same analysis from the November meeting, as I am still convinced that allowing vehicle 
sales in the CP-2 district is unnecessary and would be detrimental to the City’s overall appearance.  The 
City already has existing vehicle repair businesses in this district and the Code currently allows vehicle 
repair, so why further compound unsightly vehicle storage and the general appearance of used car lots?  I 
see little benefit to the City by allowing vehicle sales. The additional sales tax revenue is offset by the loss 



Zoning Text Amendments  Page 2 
	

in property value and perception of the City.  Vehicle sales can be located in other commercial districts, so 
the City isn’t singling out this particular land use.   
 

Existing Section 12-102 (1) (17) listed below: 
 

 
 
Under Section 12-102 (1) (17) the Commission is proposing to delete the following portion of Code,  
 
“Motor vehicle service and/or repair, not sales.” 
 
If you recall from the last three meetings, there has been lively discussions relating to this amendment 
from staff and Commission members.  By eliminating this part of the Code, vehicle sales would be allowed 
in the CP-2 zoning district.  Currently, it is staff’s interpretation of the existing Code that there are 
conflicting code provisions regarding vehicle sales, thereby vehicle sales is prohibited. Section 32-101 
states, “…Where the conditions or requirements imposed by the provisions of these Regulations are either 
more restrictive or less restrictive than comparable conditions or restrictions imposed by any provision of 
any other applicable law, ordinance, resolution, rule or regulation of any kind, the regulations which are 
more restrictive and impose higher standards or requirements shall apply.”   
 



Zoning Text Amendments  Page 3 
	

Staff is, however, opposed to this amendment brought forth by the Planning Commission due to the 
potential adverse impacts of this land use and the undesirable appearance of typical used car lots. The 
district primarily runs along Highway 56 and 6th Street with properties consisting of narrow lot widths and 
frontages.  This corridor is the prime retail commercial district for the City.  Add to it, KDOT is further 
reducing many existing access points, as part of the Highway 56 Corridor Management Plan approved by 
the City several years ago, then it becomes evident many businesses requiring the display of products and 
equipment should be reexamined, as this use and others uses may not be economically feasible along this 
corridor.  Please keep in mind, this use is not prohibited within the city limits, just in the CP-2 and 
downtown zoning districts.  Nonetheless, staff will bring forward this amendment to the City Council for 
final decision, if the Commission recommends approval.  
 
Amendment #3: 
 
I can provide the Commission with several options to consider when you debate reducing interior front 
yard setbacks: 
 

1. Allow the reduction by right and do not require any public notice or hearing.   
2. Allow the reduction by conditional use permit with public notice and hearing required.  This 

option allows adjacent residents the ability to provide comments to assist the Commission in 
making a decision.  Adjacent residents are directly affected by any reduction.     

3. Find middle ground where adjacent residents are notified and can provide comment, but not a 
formal approval process such as a conditional use permit.  An example of this process could be 
creating an approval process similar to Development Plan Approval described in Article 19 “Plan 
Approval Guidelines.”  Under this Article all “planned” districts and conditional use permits must 
obtain approval from the Commission prior to issuance of any building permits. No formal 
notification process is required, but the Commission could require adjacent properties owners an 
opportunity to comment or object (appeal) to a setback reduction.  If so, then the project could go 
to the Commission for consideration as a conditional use permit. (We can discuss this process in 
greater detail at the meeting) 

4. Do nothing and keep the Code, as it is currently written.   
 
From staff’s perspective, I believe existing residents should have some say regarding any front yard 
reduction, as their residence was built under the existing setback standard, while a new property owner of 
an undeveloped lot adjacent to them could build a new residence with a reduction of possibly 5 to 10 feet, 
potentially impacting the appearance of the overall block and visibility from their residence.  At a 
minimum, a residence built five or ten feet out the building plane (setback line) along a block could appear 
awkward due to the building projection rather than parallel with the existing residences. Furthermore, off-
street parking may become more problematic, as there would be little room from the garage to the front 
property line.  This could result in vehicles encroaching onto sidewalks and extending into the City’s 
rights-of-way, especially large trucks.  From an enforcement perspective, this reduction will result in more 
parking violations.   
 
On the other hand, I can understand granting property owners with the ability to use more of their lot for 
building and general enjoyment by allowing the residence to be built closer to the road, consequently 
increasing the rear yard area for greater access.  Yet, I feel adjacent residents should have the opportunity 
to provide their comments/concerns regarding any reduction.   
 



Zoning Text Amendments  Page 4 
	

Before the Commission recommends a change to the Zoning Code, the Commission should also be aware 
of an existing provision allowing for front yard setback reductions based upon existing development 
patterns.  Section 25-103 (3) (d) may address the Commission’s concern relating to existing subdivisions.  
This provision can allow “averaging” of existing front yard setbacks from existing residences within 200-
feet of the subject property. This would not address new or undeveloped subdivisions.        
 
Staff’s recommendation would be to choose option #2, requiring a conditional use permit.  This would 
provide existing property owners with the ability to comment on a new residence and for the Commission 
to set appropriate building design and appearance standards, if necessary.   
 
Other Potential Amendments: 
Staff would also like to continue the discussion of Planned Unit Developments, if the Commission desires.   
 
Decision:  The Planning Commission shall review the above-referenced zoning text amendments and 
shall make a recommendation to the Governing Body to either approve, modify or deny the above three 
(3) amendments.  



C. It	is	the	policy	of	the	City	of	Baldwin	City	to	“Buy	Local”	whenever	it	is	reasonable.		It	is	
recognized	to	be	good	public	policy.		Also,	each	dollar	invested	in	the	local	economy	is	
recognized	to	have	a	“multiplier”	effect	as	the	invested	dollar	is	spent	by	the	recipient	again	
in	other	local	areas	that	in	turn	again	spend	it	locally,	etc.		The	implementation	of	this	policy	
will	be	the	responsibility	of	the	department	heads,	City	Administrator	and	City	Council,	
within	their	respective	spending	authority.		In	cases	where	all	other	considerations	are	
equal,	and	the	additional	cost	in	dollars	and/or	percentage	terms	is	reasonable,	the	choice	
to	buy	local	is	preferred.		The	following	guidelines	are	to	be	observed	when	considering	a	
“buy	local”	preference.	

a. A	business	is	considered	to	be	local	when	it	has	established	a	permanent	place	of	
business	within	twenty	miles	of	the	Baldwin	City	limits	for	at	least	six	months.		The	
place	of	business	must	be	a	physical	facility	and	excludes	a	portion	of	a	home	or	
apartment,	motel	rooms	or	post	office	boxes.	

b. The	business	must	not	have	any	outstanding	fines,	code	violations	or	other	amounts	
due	to	the	City,	other	than	current	utility	balances	and	shall	have	all	appropriate	
City	licenses	current	and	in	good	standing.	

c. For	purchases:	

i. Under	$500.00,	every	effort	will	be	made	to	buy	local,	when	possible;	

ii. Between	$500.00	and	$5,000.00,	the	buy	local	policy	will	be	used	unless	a	
savings	of	5%	or	more	can	be	achieved;	

iii. From	$5,000.00	and	over,	the	buy	local	preference	will	not	apply.	

d. The	policy	does	not	apply	to	bids	for	the	construction	of	sidewalks,	curb	and	gutter,	
pavement	(either	new	of	repair),	improvements	to	roads	and	streets,	public	
buildings	and	facilities	or	any	public	improvements	commissioned	by	the	City	
Council.	

e. The	policy	does	not	apply	to	cooperative	purchasing	agreements	or	where	the	
source	of	funds	prohibits	such	a	policy.		For	example,	funds	provided	by	a	grant	
could	restrict	application	of	such	a	policy.	

f. If	two	or	more	“local”	businesses	submit	bids	of	an	equal	amount,	the	award	shall	
go	to	the	business	determined	by	coin	flip.		The	procedures	of	the	coin	flip	process	
will	be	determined	by	the	City	Administrator.	

	
























































	Agenda 01.03.2016
	B. 1. Minutes 12.19.2016
	E. 1. Resolution 2017-01 BuildingPermits
	F. 1. Ordinance No.1358 zoning text amendment
	F. 1. Planning Commission Memo
	H. 1. Buy Local section of Purchasing Policy Draft
	H. 2. Council Summary Report_DecYTD
	H. 2. VendorActivityRpt_12.06.16-12.29.16

